U.S. Department 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE

of Transportation Washington, DC 20590

Pipeline and Hazardous
Materials Safety
Administration

- January 30, 2020

Craig F. Lowther

Lowther Johnson Attorneys at Law, LLC
901 St. Louis Street

20% Floor

Springfield, MO 65806

Reference No. 19-0107
Dear Mr. Lowther;

This letter is in response to your August 14, 2019 and October 2, 2019, letters and subsequent
phone conversation requesting clarification of the Hazardous Materials Regulations (HMR;
49 CFR Parts 171-180) applicable to the reflective design of an MC 331 cargo tank.
Specifically, you ask whether the cargo tank, as described in your letters and shown in the
enclosed photographs, meets the reflective design requirements of § 178.337-1(d).

In your letter, you describe an MC 331 cargo tank wrapped with 3M 1J180CV3-10 Controltac
and 3M Scotchcal Gloss Overlaminate 8518 with UV protection. The enclosed photographs
show that the wrap that covers approximately the front half of the MC 331 cargo tank is light
gray with a green decal, darkening to a charcoal gray at the tank’s midsection. The rear half of
the cargo tank is covered with a bright green wrap. You provide temperature test data for the
cargo tank and product description data for the wrap.

In accordance with § 178.337-1(d), every uninsulated MC 331 cargo tank permanently attached
to a cargo tank motor vehicle shall, unless covered with a jacket made of aluminum, stainless
steel, or other bright nontarnishing metal, be painted a white, aluminum or similar reflecting
color on the upper two-thirds of area of the cargo tank.

Based on the information provided in your letters, and in conformance with previously issued
Letters of Interpretation including Ref. Nos. 11-0067, 14-0180, and 15-0242, the cargo tanks
shown in the photographs and data you supplied appear to meet the intent of this section. We
recognize the requirements of § 178.337-1(d) have generated confusion for motor carriers and
we may consider amending the section in a future rulemaking.

I hope this information is helpful. Please contact us if we can be of further assistance.

Sincerely, Z %

Chief, Standards Development Branch
Standards and Rulemaking Division







THE LEADER IN VISUAL BRANDING

The Ozark Mountain Energy propane trailer in question is wrapped using
3M™ 1)180CV3-10 Controltac™ and 3M™ Scotchcal™ Gloss Overlaminate 8518
with UV Protection, approved by D.O.T. in compliance with their requirements.

Kind Regards,

Pro DelZigns







Product Bulletin 8518
Release A, Effective September 2006

Scotchcal ™
Gloss Overlaminate 8518

Description Shelf Life, Storage, and
AM™ Scotrheal ™ Glace Ouerlaminate ie a 2—mil film thqf Shipping
can enhan . :
! Activity Recommendation
graphic constructions. 1t 18 designed for cold roll lamina- — - - T
tion only. Refer to the base film’s Product Bulletin to de- Shelf life Total shelf life: 2 years
termine compatibility and durability. Up to 2 years unprocessed, OR
process within 1 year and apply
Ch . . within 1 year of processing
aracteristics Storage conditions e 86°F (30°C) maximum
(Bring to room temperature
Characteristic Description before using)
Color Clear e Out of sunlight
e Clean dry area
Gloss Gloss e Original container
Adhesive Pressure sensitive, clear Shipping finished Refer to the base film’s Product
Liner Polyester graphics Bulletin
Thickness 2 mil (0.05 mm) without adhesive
3—4 mil (0.08 to 0.10 mm) with
adhesive Health and safety
Tensile strength S pounds/inch at 73°F
(minimum) (0.9 kg/em at 23°C) /\ Caution
Dimensional 0.015 inch (0.4 mm) . :
stability When handling any chemical products, read the
- —_— manufacturers’ container labels and the Material
! Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for important health,
e - safety and environmental information.
Chemical e  Resists mild alkalis, mild acids
resistance and salt To obtain MSDS sheets for 3M products:
*  Excellent resistance to water e By fax, call 1-800-364-0768 in the US and Canada
s  Resisls petroleum vapors or 1-650-556-8417 for all other locations.
e Electronically, visit us at http://www.3M.com/
MSDS.

¢ By mail, or in case of an emergency, call
1-800-364-3577 or 1-651-737-6501.

When using any equipment, always follow the
manufacturers’ instructions for safe operation.
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October 2, 2019

Eamonn Patrick

U.S. Department of Transportation
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials
Safety Administration

1200 New Jersey Ave. SE
Washington, D.C. 20590

RE: State of Missouri v Robert F. Foley; Cass County Case #702915174
Tracking No. 19-0107
Matter ID 33791-000

Dear Patrick:

You requested that | have testing done on the Ozark Mountain Energy propane
trailer to make sure that the wrap does in fact refiect the UV rays and keep the
internal temperature of the tank cool.

| have enclosed for you the testing report performed by Trux Trailer and Tractor
Repair Inc. located here in Springfield. It looks like the wrap does in fact reflect
UV rays, which is the purpose of the regulation, and the report is consistent with
the previous opinion letter | received from D.O.T.

| would appreciate it if you would review this report and see if you have enough
information to respond to my letter of August 14, 2019. | need this in order to get
the Missouri State Highway Patrol to understand that the wrap was placed on the
trailer for the purpose of reflecting the UV rays and it does work as advertised,
and is not a violation of the D.O.T. regulations.

Please call me if you have any questions.
Very truly yours,

LOWTHER JOHNSON
f+-—-2ys at Law, LL.C

-. Lowther
CFL:kcl
Enclosure

www.lowtherjohnson.com
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